
Housing Scrutiny Commission

Monday 28 October 2019
7.00 pm

Ground Floor Meeting Room G02A - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

Membership Reserves

Councillor Gavin Edwards (Chair)
Councillor Hamish McCallum (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Jack Buck
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle MBE
Councillor Jon Hartley
Councillor Nick Johnson
Councillor Bill Williams
Cris Claridge
Ina Negoita

Councillor Helen Dennis
Councillor Paul Fleming
Councillor Darren Merrill
Councillor Victoria Olisa
Councillor Charlie Smith
Councillor Anood Al-Samerai

INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

Access to information
You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda as well as 
the background documents used in the preparation of these reports.
Babysitting/Carers allowances
If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your children, an 
elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could attend this meeting, you 
may claim an allowance from the council.  Please collect a claim form at the meeting.
Access
The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  Further details on building access, 
translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the council’s web site: 
www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below.
Contact: Fitzroy Williams on 020 7525 7102 or email: Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting
Eleanor Kelly
Chief Executive
Date: 18 October 2019

Open Agenda

http://www.southwark.gov.uk/Public/Home.aspx
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:Fitzroy.williams@southwark.gov.uk


Housing Scrutiny Commission
Monday 28 October 2019

7.00 pm
Ground Floor Meeting Room G02A - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

Order of Business

Item No. Title Page No.

PART A - OPEN BUSINESS

1. APOLOGIES

2. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR 
DEEMS URGENT

In special circumstances, an item of business may be added to an agenda 
within five clear working days of the meeting.

3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS

Members to declare any interests and dispensations in respect of any item 
of business to be considered at this meeting.

4. MINUTES

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the open section of the 
meeting on the Monday 8th July 2019.

To follow

5. DISTRICT HEATING

Report to be Presented by Strategic Project Manager. To follow

6. TEMPORARY ACCOMMODATION

Report to be presented by Director of Customer Experience. To follow

7. VOIDS 1 - 3



Item No. Title Page No.

For context, the previous Housing and Environmental Scrutiny 
Commission interim report on empty homes is attached.

8. HOUSING REPAIRS

The Chair to present this item of business.

9. WORK PROGRAMME

DISCUSSION OF ANY OTHER OPEN ITEMS AS NOTIFIED AT THE 
START OF THE MEETING.

PART B - CLOSED BUSINESS

DISCUSSION OF ANY CLOSED ITEMS AS NOTIFIED AT THE START 
OF THE MEETING AND ACCEPTED BY THE CHAIR AS URGENT.

Date:  18 October 2019

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

The following motion should be moved, seconded and approved if the 
sub-committee wishes to exclude the press and public to deal with reports 
revealing exempt information:

  “That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraphs 1-7, Access to Information 
Procedure rules of the Constitution.”



Housing & Environment Commission

Empty Homes – Interim Report 

The Housing & Environment Commission chose ‘Empty Homes’ as its first topic for investigation in 
2018-19. The inquiry scope included both public and private stock and the Commission took a report 
from Officers at its meeting on October 17th 2018. 

There were a number of drivers for this inquiry: 

- Recognition of recent challenges relating the turn-around of voids;
- The need to maximise our use of existing stock to meet the needs of Southwark residents on 

our council housing waiting list (approximately 10,500);
- Anecdotal evidence of new build  properties, especially in the north of the borough, being 

left vacant (so-called ‘buy to leave’). 

Council Officers present at that meeting to give evidence included: 

Paul Langford, Director of Resident Services, Housing and Modernisation
Cheryl Russell, Area Manager, Housing Modernisation
Keith Kiernan, Specialist Services Contract Manager
Michelle Williams, Project Officer 

At that meeting, the Commission requested further information from Council Officers on a range of 
topics. This information, where available, is presented below. Officers have advised however that at 
this stage, they are unable to fully answer the Commission’s questions on empty homes in the 
private sector. A working group has been established to look at the available data, ways of 
measuring empty homes and responding to the challenge. The Commission hopes that this group 
will be able to report back to Scrutiny in due course.

1) Overall Figures on Empty Homes 

- There is some confusion about the overall number of empty homes in Southwark. Various 
figures and estimates have been made but nothing which is authoritative, especially on 
empty homes in the private sector. The Council should establish a methodology for the 
estimation of empty homes and should release this figure annually as a matter of course. 

- At the Housing & Environment Commission’s meeting on 17th October 2018, the number of 
empty council homes was provided as follows: 

 307 properties due to refurbishment decisions awaiting
 846 properties on the Aylesbury Estate awaiting demolition
 27 properties awaiting decisions regarding disposal 
 144 active voids being turned around. 

- The figures presented in the written report from Officers presented the information in a 
slightly different way. That document gave a headline figure of 664 empty council properties 

1
Agenda Item 7



of which 499 are ‘non-active’ - including 140 awaiting demolition - and 165 are ‘active’. The 
discrepancy in the ‘non-active’ figures (between the report and the Commission meeting) 
appears to result from the next phase of the Aylesbury Estate regeneration moving forward.

- The Commission recognises that time has been needed to ensure the right decisions are 
made regarding the Ledbury and Maydew House on the Abbeyfield Estate. Both of these 
projects are now moving forward and the proposed works on Maydew House went out to 
procurement before Christmas. The Commission recommends that the use of vacated 
properties on the Aylesbury Estate continues to be maximised by the Council for temporary 
accommodation.

2) Council Stock – Voids 

- The Council Plan now includes a target to turn around voids within 28 days which the 
Commission welcomes. The Commission recognises that a considerable amount of work has 
been done by the recently established ‘Voids Project Group’ and that the current turnaround 
time is now averaging 33 days. This compares with an average time of 107 days in 2017/18.

- The Commission notes that a review of the Council’s work on voids has been commissioned 
from Housemark in order to further improve performance. We also note that the Council’s 
in-house provider, Southwark Building Services (SBS) have taken on all voids work across the 
borough from October 2018. We therefore expect to see further improvements and the 
Commission recommends that a further follow-up report be brought to Scrutiny in due course 
to track progress against these changes.

- The Commission remains concerned about major voids and some of the historic long-term 
voids which remain in the system. Further figures have been requested which break down 
the council voids into those that have been empty for less than 12 months, 12-24 months, 
and any over 24 months. It would also be helpful to have the average turnaround time for 
those classified as ‘major voids’.

- The Commission also requests that any follow-up reports includes information about 
adaptations to voids, and the average time taken to prepare a property for new residents 
requiring adaptations.

3) Council Stock – Disposal Policy

- The Commission asked for clarification on the Council’s current ‘disposal policy’. We remain 
concerned by the lack of available family homes in the borough and urge the Council to 
retain larger properties within its stock wherever possible. 

- Council Officers have explained that when properties require significant investment, they 
are referred to a specialist team. Previously, a requirement for investment for around 
£50,000 or more would have automatically led to a disposal. Property decisions are now 
more contextualised and there are examples of greater sums being invested in order to 

2



retain properties. The Commission would like further clarification on the current policy and 
process, and recommends that the disposal policy be reviewed going forward in light of 
housing need.

4) Empty Homes in the Private Sector 

- The Commission sought clarification on the number of estimated private sector empty 
homes in the borough. No figures for this were provided in the Officers’ report although 
discussion referred back to council tax data from the Department for Communities and Local 
Government (DCLG). The 2017 CLG data refers to an estimated 5,944 empty properties in 
Southwark (public and private sector). The Commission requests further work be done by 
Officers to fully understand these figures. We would like a report to come back to the 
Commission later in 2019 providing an updated headline figure and further detail on how this 
breaks down, including housing association properties and so-called ‘buy to leave’ properties.

- The Commission would like to better understand the range of policy options available to the 
Council to dis-incentivise so-called ‘buy to leave’. The Commission has urged the Council to 
levy the maximum amount of council tax premium on empty homes.

- The Commission heard about the Council’s work to bring empty homes back into use 
through the use of grants and loans, and repair and lease agreements. Properties can also be 
rented through housing solutions, including as temporary accommodation, as an option for 
owners who feel unable to manage their properties directly. In 2017-18, 30 properties were 
brought back into use as a result of this work. Whilst the examples provided are welcome, 
the team appears small given the caseload. We were told that there are 1000s of properties 
on the team’s database, with around 600 open cases. 

- The Commission discussed possible enforcement action including the use of Compulsory 
Purchase Orders (CPOs) and Empty Management Dwelling Orders (EMDOs), the second of 
which enable the Council to take up temporary management of an empty property for up to 
seven years. It was reported that the Council was currently exploring five CPOs but does not 
favour the use of EMDOs due to the administrative costs involved. The Commission would 
like to understand whether there would be a long term ‘return on investment’ the council by 
expanding the empty homes team further.

- Finally, the Commission also discussed the issue of furnished properties which are 
infrequently let (not counted as ‘empty’ in CLG statistics). In the first instance, the 
Commission would like to understand what the Council is doing to understand the extent of 
this practice across the borough, and what data sources might be drawn upon.

Conclusion

Given the significant pressures on housing in the borough, the issue of empty homes and how 
existing housing stock – both public and private – is used, must be front of mind. The 
Commission looks forward to a further meeting on this issue, later in 2019, to fully explore the 
outstanding issues raised in this report. 

3



4



HOUSING SCRUTINY COMMISSION 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2019-20

AGENDA DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN)

NOTE: Original held by Scrutiny Team; all amendments/queries to Fitzroy Williams Tel: 020 7525 7102

Name No of 
copies

Name No of 
copies

Co-Opted Members

Ina Negoita (Homeowners’ Council)
David Eyles (Homeowners’ Council Reserve)
Cris Claridge (Tenants’ Council)

Member

1
1
1

Chris Page - Head of Cabinet Office and 
Public Affairs

Fitzroy Williams, Scrutiny Team SPARES

External

Caroline Vicent

1

10

1

Electronic Copy

Members

Councillor Gavin Edwards
Councillor Hamish McCallum
Councillor Jack Buck
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle MBE
Councillor Jon Hartley
Councillor Nick Johnson
Councillor Bill Williams

Reserves Members

Councillor Anood Al-Samerai
Councillor Helen Dennis
Councillor Paul Fleming
Councillor Darren Merrill
Councillor Victoria Olisa
Councillor Charlie Smith

Total: 14

Dated: June 2019

5


	Agenda
	7 Voids
	 Distribution List 2019/20
	Distribution List_Housing


